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determined that a violation has occurred 
as to Mr. Li. Bellsing had previously 
been found in default, and the 
Commission finds a violation has 
occurred as to Bellsing. Specifically, the 
Commission finds that (1) Mr. Li has 
met the importation requirement on 
modified grounds, and affirms the ID’s 
remaining findings on importation; (2) 
Mr. Li has used and/or disclosed each 
of RTS Nos. 1–10; (3) RTS No. 6 has 
been misappropriated; and (4) affirms 
the IDs findings on domestic industry. 
All findings in the ID that are not 
inconsistent with the Commission’s 
determination are affirmed. 

Accordingly, the Commission finds 
that there is a violation of section 337. 
The Commission has determined that 
the appropriate remedy is a GEO and 
CDOs directed to each of the Bellsing 
respondents and Mr. Li. These orders 
bar Bellsing and Mr. Li’s unfair acts for 
a duration of twenty-six (26) years. The 
Commission has also determined that 
the public interest factors enumerated in 
subsections 337(d)(1) and (f)(1) (19 
U.S.C. 1337(d)(1), (f)(1)) do not preclude 
the issuance of the GEO and CDOs. The 
GEO is directed to covered products that 
are made by, for, or on behalf of Bellsing 
and/or Mr. Li. The GEO reaches 
downstream products incorporating the 
covered products. The GEO includes a 
provision requiring any importer 
seeking to import the covered products 
(or products containing them or the 
components thereof) manufactured by 
or for Bellsing and/or Mr. Li or their 
affiliates or successors, to obtain a 
ruling from the Commission prior to the 
importation of the articles, finding that 
they are not subject to the GEO. The 
Commission has set the bond at one 
hundred percent (100%) of the value of 
the entered products imported by or on 
behalf of Bellsing and/or Mr. Li and sets 
a zero percent (0%) bond (i.e., no bond) 
for downstream products or components 
thereof. The investigation is terminated. 

The Commission’s orders and opinion 
were delivered to the President and to 
the United States Trade Representative 
on the day of their issuance. 

The Commission vote for this 
determination took place on October 4, 
2021. 

The authority for the Commission’s 
determination is contained in section 
337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in Part 
210 of the Commission’s Rules of 
Practice and Procedure (19 CFR part 
210). 

By order of the Commission. 

Issued: October 4, 2021. 
Lisa Barton, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2021–21998 Filed 10–7–21; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

Notice of Receipt of Complaint; 
Solicitation of Comments Relating to 
the Public Interest 

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade 
Commission. 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that 
the U.S. International Trade 
Commission has received a complaint 
entitled Certain Oil-Vaping Cartridges, 
Components Thereof, and Products 
Containing the Same, DN 3571; the 
Commission is soliciting comments on 
any public interest issues raised by the 
complaint or complainant’s filing 
pursuant to the Commission’s Rules of 
Practice and Procedure. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Lisa 
R. Barton, Secretary to the Commission, 
U.S. International Trade Commission, 
500 E Street SW, Washington, DC 
20436, telephone (202) 205–2000. The 
public version of the complaint can be 
accessed on the Commission’s 
Electronic Document Information 
System (EDIS) at https://edis.usitc.gov. 
For help accessing EDIS, please email 
EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. 

General information concerning the 
Commission may also be obtained by 
accessing its internet server at United 
States International Trade Commission 
(USITC) at https://www.usitc.gov. The 
public record for this investigation may 
be viewed on the Commission’s 
Electronic Document Information 
System (EDIS) at https://edis.usitc.gov. 
Hearing-impaired persons are advised 
that information on this matter can be 
obtained by contacting the 
Commission’s TDD terminal on (202) 
205–1810. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The 
Commission has received a complaint 
and a submission pursuant to § 210.8(b) 
of the Commission’s Rules of Practice 
and Procedure filed on behalf of 
Shenzhen Smoore Technology Limited, 
on October 4, 2021. The complaint 
alleges violations of section 337 of the 
Tariff Act of 1930 (19 U.S.C. 1337) in 
the importation into the United States, 
the sale for importation, and the sale 
within the United States after 
importation of certain oil-vaping 
cartridges, components thereof, and 
products containing the same. The 

complainant names as respondents: 
BBTank USA, LLC of Lambertville, MI; 
Glo Extracts of Los Angeles, CA; 
BulkCarts.com of Canton, MI; 
Greenwave Naturals LLC of Austin, TX; 
BoldCarts.com of Tempe, AZ; Bold 
Crafts, Inc. of Irvine, CA; Blinc Group 
Holdings, LLC of New York, NY; 
Jonathan Ray Carfield d/b/a AlderEgo 
Wholesale, AlderEgo Holdings, Inc. and 
AlderEgo Group Limited a/k/a AVID 
Holding Limited of China; Hanna 
Carfield of Tacoma, WA; Next Level 
Ventures, LLC of Seattle, WA; Advanced 
Vapor Devices, LLC of Los Angeles, CA; 
avd710.com of Seattle, WA; AlderEgo 
Group Limited (‘‘AEG’’) of Hong Kong; 
A & A Global Imports, Inc. d/b/a 
Marijuana Packaging of Vernon, CA; 
Bulk Natural, LLC d/b/a True Terpenes 
of Portland, OR; Brand King, LLC of 
Sacramento, CA; ZTCSMOKE USA Inc. 
of Niceville, FL; 
headcandysmokeshop.com of Canada; 
Head Candy Enterprise Ltd. of Canada; 
Green Tank Technologies Corp of 
Canada; Cannary Packaging Inc. of 
Canada; Cannary LA of Signal Hill, CA; 
dcalchemy.com of Phoenix, AZ; DC 
Alchemy, LLC of Phoenix AZ; 
Cartridgesforsale.com of Ypsilanti, MI; 
HW Supply, LLC of Ypsilanti, MI; 
International Vapor Group, LLC of 
Miami, FL; Obisidian Supply, Inc. of 
Irvine, CA; Ygreeninc.com of Walnut, 
CA; Ygreen Inc. of Walnut, CA; Atmos 
Nation LLC of Davie, FL; shopbvv.com 
of Naperville, IL; Best Value Vacs, LLC 
of Naperville, IL; 
Royalsupplywholesale.com of San 
Francisco, CA; 
Customcanabisbranding.com of San 
Francisco, CA; CLK Global, Inc. of San 
Francisco, CA; iKrusher.com of Arcadia, 
CA; and The Calico Group Inc. of 
Austin, TX. The complainant requests 
that the Commission issue a limited 
exclusion order, cease and desist orders, 
and impose a bond upon respondents 
alleged infringing articles during the 60- 
day Presidential review period pursuant 
to 19 U.S.C. 1337(j). 

Proposed respondents, other 
interested parties, and members of the 
public are invited to file comments on 
any public interest issues raised by the 
complaint or § 210.8(b) filing. 
Comments should address whether 
issuance of the relief specifically 
requested by the complainant in this 
investigation would affect the public 
health and welfare in the United States, 
competitive conditions in the United 
States economy, the production of like 
or directly competitive articles in the 
United States, or United States 
consumers. 

In particular, the Commission is 
interested in comments that: 
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1 Handbook for Electronic Filing Procedures: 
https://www.usitc.gov/documents/handbook_on_
filing_procedures.pdf. 

2 All contract personnel will sign appropriate 
nondisclosure agreements. 

3 Electronic Document Information System 
(EDIS): https://edis.usitc.gov. 

(i) Explain how the articles 
potentially subject to the requested 
remedial orders are used in the United 
States; 

(ii) identify any public health, safety, 
or welfare concerns in the United States 
relating to the requested remedial 
orders; 

(iii) identify like or directly 
competitive articles that complainant, 
its licensees, or third parties make in the 
United States which could replace the 
subject articles if they were to be 
excluded; 

(iv) indicate whether complainant, 
complainant’s licensees, and/or third 
party suppliers have the capacity to 
replace the volume of articles 
potentially subject to the requested 
exclusion order and/or a cease and 
desist order within a commercially 
reasonable time; and 

(v) explain how the requested 
remedial orders would impact United 
States consumers. 

Written submissions on the public 
interest must be filed no later than by 
close of business, eight calendar days 
after the date of publication of this 
notice in the Federal Register. There 
will be further opportunities for 
comment on the public interest after the 
issuance of any final initial 
determination in this investigation. Any 
written submissions on other issues 
must also be filed by no later than the 
close of business, eight calendar days 
after publication of this notice in the 
Federal Register. Complainant may file 
replies to any written submissions no 
later than three calendar days after the 
date on which any initial submissions 
were due. No other submissions will be 
accepted, unless requested by the 
Commission. Any submissions and 
replies filed in response to this Notice 
are limited to five (5) pages in length, 
inclusive of attachments. 

Persons filing written submissions 
must file the original document 
electronically on or before the deadlines 
stated above. Submissions should refer 
to the docket number (‘‘Docket No. 
3571’’) in a prominent place on the 
cover page and/or the first page. (See 
Handbook for Electronic Filing 
Procedures, Electronic Filing 
Procedures 1). Please note the 
Secretary’s Office will accept only 
electronic filings during this time. 
Filings must be made through the 
Commission’s Electronic Document 
Information System (EDIS, https://
edis.usitc.gov.) No in-person paper- 
based filings or paper copies of any 

electronic filings will be accepted until 
further notice. Persons with questions 
regarding filing should contact the 
Secretary at EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. 

Any person desiring to submit a 
document to the Commission in 
confidence must request confidential 
treatment. All such requests should be 
directed to the Secretary to the 
Commission and must include a full 
statement of the reasons why the 
Commission should grant such 
treatment. See 19 CFR 201.6. Documents 
for which confidential treatment by the 
Commission is properly sought will be 
treated accordingly. All information, 
including confidential business 
information and documents for which 
confidential treatment is properly 
sought, submitted to the Commission for 
purposes of this Investigation may be 
disclosed to and used: (i) By the 
Commission, its employees and Offices, 
and contract personnel (a) for 
developing or maintaining the records 
of this or a related proceeding, or (b) in 
internal investigations, audits, reviews, 
and evaluations relating to the 
programs, personnel, and operations of 
the Commission including under 5 
U.S.C. Appendix 3; or (ii) by U.S. 
government employees and contract 
personnel,2 solely for cybersecurity 
purposes. All nonconfidential written 
submissions will be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Secretary 
and on EDIS.3 

This action is taken under the 
authority of section 337 of the Tariff Act 
of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), 
and of §§ 201.10 and 210.8(c) of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure (19 CFR 201.10, 210.8(c)). 

By order of the Commission. 
Issued: October 5, 2021. 

Lisa Barton, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2021–22034 Filed 10–7–21; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Notice of Lodging of Proposed 
Consent Decree Under the Oil 
Pollution Act 

On October 4, 2021, the Department 
of Justice lodged a proposed Consent 
Decree with the United States District 
Court for the Eastern District of 
Louisiana in United States and State of 
Louisiana v. American Commercial 

Barge Line LLC, Civil Case No. 2:21–cv– 
01818 (E.D. La.). 

The United States is acting at the 
request of the designated federal 
trustees: National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration and the 
United States Department of the Interior 
through the United States Fish and 
Wildlife Service. The State of Louisiana 
is acting through its designated State 
trustees: The Louisiana Oil Spill 
Coordinator’s Office, Department of 
Public Safety & Corrections, Louisiana 
Department of Natural Resources, 
Louisiana Department of Environmental 
Quality, Louisiana Department of 
Wildlife and Fisheries, and the Coastal 
Protection and Restoration Authority. 

The Complaint in this natural 
resource damages case was filed against 
Defendant American Commercial Barge 
Line LLC (‘‘ACBL’’) concurrently with 
the lodging of the proposed Consent 
Decree. This is a civil action for 
recovery of damages for injury to, 
destruction of, loss of, or loss of use of 
natural resources, under Section 1002 of 
the Oil Pollution Act (‘‘OPA’’), 33 U.S.C. 
2702, and Section 2480 of the Louisiana 
Oil Spill Prevention and Response Act 
(‘‘OSPRA’’), La. Rev. Stat. 30:2480. The 
United States and the State of Louisiana 
seek damages in order to compensate for 
and restore natural resources injured by 
ACBL’s oil discharge from its Barge 
DM–932 into the Mississippi River on or 
about July 23, 2008. The United States 
and the State also seek to recover 
unreimbursed costs of assessing such 
injuries and planning for restoration. 

Under the proposed Consent Decree, 
ACBL will pay $2,071,212 to the 
trustees to restore, replace, or acquire 
the equivalent of the natural resources 
allegedly injured, destroyed, or lost as a 
result of the oil spill. ACBL also will 
effect the transfer of title and 
preservation of approximately 649.1 
acres of forested woodland habitat in 
Plaquemines Parish, Louisiana near the 
English Turn of the Mississippi River. 
ACBL has already paid $1,320,961.72 to 
the trustees for past assessment and 
restoration planning costs. 

The publication of this notice opens 
a period for public comment on the 
proposed Consent Decree. Comments 
should be addressed to the Assistant 
Attorney General, Environment and 
Natural Resources Division, and should 
refer to United States and State of 
Louisiana v. American Commercial 
Barge Line LLC, DJ# 90–5–1–1–10875/1, 
Civil Case No. 2:21–cv–01818 (E.D. La.). 
All comments must be submitted no 
later than thirty (30) days after the 
publication date of this notice. 
Comments may be submitted either by 
email or by mail: 
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